
295 Girard Street, Durango, CO 81303 
970.779.4592 

www.swccog.org 
 

 

 

 
 
 

Regular Meeting Agenda 

Thursday, August 12, 2021, 9:00 a.m. 

20581 US 160 W, Durango 

 
I. Introductions         9:00 a.m. 
   
II. Consent Agenda        9:10 a.m. 

1. June 2021 Meeting Minutes 
2. Financial Report:  July 2020 – June 2021 

    
III. Reports          9:15 a.m. 

1. June, July 2021 STAC Update  
2. Transportation Commissioner Report – Mark Garcia 

 
IV. Discussion/Decision Items       9:45 a.m. 

1. MMOF Project Application Funding Allocation Decisions  
2. Ratification of letters of support for FTA Transit funds    

 
V.  CDOT Reports          10:30 a.m. 

1. Construction Update – Kevin Curry 
2. State Legislative Update - Julie Constan 
3. SB267 Year 3a and Year 4 Funding - Matt Muraro 
4. Discuss “updates” to the 4 Year Plan - Matt Muraro 
5.  Greenhouse Gas Rulemaking Update – Annelies Van Vonno 
 

VI.     Other Business          11:30 a.m. 
1. Updates – Round Robin         

VII. Adjourn 

 
Next regular meeting date: Thursday, October 14, 2021 
 
 

 
Video/Phone Conference Info: 

https://zoom.us 
 Webinar ID: 516436015 

 
Or by Telephone: 

US: +1 669 900 6833, Webinar ID: 516 436 015 



Page 1 of 3 
 

Southwest Colorado Regional Transportation 

Planning Commission 

Thursday, June 10, 2021 - 9:00 a.m. 

Video/phone conference 

 

TPR Members in Attendance: 

Clyde Church – La Plata County 
Phil Johnson – City of Cortez 
Sarah Hill – City of Durango 
Martin Schmidt – Town of Pagosa Springs 
Drew Sanders – City of Cortez 
Laura Vanoni – Archuleta County  
Fred Brooks – Town of Mancos 
David Black – Town of Bayfield  
Katie Sickles – Town of Bayfield 
Jim Candelaria – Montezuma County 
Doug McDonald – Southern Ute Indian Tribe 
Andrea Phillips – Town of Pagosa Springs 
Ronnie Maez – Archuleta County 
Ken Charles – Town of Dolores 
Josh Joswick – Town of Bayfield 
Amber Blake – City of Durango 
 
Others in Attendance: 
James Horn – Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc 
Sidny Zink – Transportation Commissioner 
Michael Snow - Colorado Department of Transportation  
Carrie Tremblatt - Colorado Department of Transportation 
Annelies Van Vonno - Colorado Department of Transportation 
Tony Cady - Colorado Department of Transportation 
Jamie Grim – Colorado Department of Transportation 
Jessica Laitsch – Southwest Colorado Council of Governments 
 
The meeting was called to order at 9:02 a.m. 

 

I. Introductions 

 

II. Consent Agenda: 

April 2021 Meeting Minutes  

Financial Report: July 2020 – April 2021 

Clyde Church motioned to approve the April minutes, Jim Candelaria seconded, 

unanimously approved.  

 

David Black motioned to accept the financial report, Phil Johnson seconded, 

unanimously approved.  

 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

III. Reports 

1. April, May 2021 STAC Update  

Sarah reported that STAC is following SB 260, there will be an update later in the meeting. They 

received an update of Bustang’s proposed micro transit. They are following the greenhouse gas 

transportation rulemaking process. There was an update on SB 267 funding, this includes $500 

million for highways, $50 million for transit capital, 25% to be spent in small counties, and 10% 

to transit. There was a presentation of the lessons learned during the statewide planning 

process. The June STAC meeting will be in person.  

 
2.  Transportation Commissioner Report – Sidny Zink 

Sidny reported the Transportation Commission has added equity, diversity, and inclusion to the 
updated policy directive. Crash statistics are high despite miles traveled being down. Her term is 
nearly complete, she has not been notified yet of the replacement.  
 
V. CDOT Reports 

Julie announced that Jennifer Allison is the new Region 5 Traffic Engineer and Amber Blake 

was selected as the new Division of Transit and Rail Director. 

 

1. Construction Update – Julie Constan 

 US 160 West & Cortez PCCP Diamond Grind – Underway, currently working in Durango.  

 US 160/SH 151 Wildlife Crossing Project – Underway, working on support for the 
underpass, estimated completion in the fall.  

 US 550/160 Connection South Design – Working on setting girders over gulches. Plans for 
a project tour are underway. 

 SH 145 Dolores Rico US 160 Cortez – Work underway, expect to be completed by fall. 

 US 160 Wolf Creek West Fiber – Awarded, running into supply issues.  

 SH 145 Dolores Rico US 160 Cortez Htr Repave – Expect to begin work in the summer.  

 US 160 McCabe Creek Pagosa – There was a slight delay to bidding, work should begin in 
the summer.  

 US 550 Durango 9th to 12th – Awarded, will begin in the summer.  

 SH 172 at County Road 318 – Scheduled to go to ad, scheduled to begin late summer or 
early fall.  

 US 550 and 30th Street – Working on change order to combine this with the 9th to 12th 
project.  

 US 160 West of Pagosa – Surface treatment project, looking at striping. 

 US 160 Four Corners to Aztec Creek – In design, scheduled for ad in the fall.   

 US 160 San Juan River Bridge Scour – In design, planned for 2023. 

 They are preparing an avalanche mitigation project on Red Mountain Pass.  

3. 260 Update – Julie Constan 
Julie presented an update on SB 21-260 concerning distribution of the federal American Rescue 
Plan Act (ARPA) of 2021. Tony added that there are additional projects identified which there 
may be the opportunity to add and prioritize in this new funding. Andrea asked how 
municipalities can provide input. Tony suggested approaching CDOT, discussing with the TPR 
directly, or working with the county. Sarah asked about the timeframe. Tony replied this would 
be ongoing but suggested discussions within the next four months for this particular funding. 
Clyde asked about previously unanticipated population changes due to remote work. Tony 



Page 3 of 3 
 

replied their travel demand model helps to look at current trends. Sarah asked about including 
projects from the 10-year transit plan. Phil asked if there was a plan to estimate the expected 
costs to residents in various regions. Jamie replied she expects such information to be 
compiled. 
 

3. MMOF Funding Update: Requests for Supplemental Funding – Tony Cady 
Michael reported that the MMOF funding awarded to the City of Cortez is being returned, and 
CDOT staff’s suggestion is to add these funds to an existing project. He summarized the 
program. Jim asked about supplemental funds for Montezuma County that had been previously 
been reduced. There was discussion about supplementing funds for projects which had not 
been previously been fully funded through this process. Staff will send the application to all 
awardees.  
 
VI.     Other Business 

1. Community Updates – Round Robin  
Fred reported the Town of Mancos is working on a bridge project. Tourism seems to be up. 
There was an unauthorized pedestrian bridge constructed.  
 
Jim reported that Montezuma County has completed striping at County Roads N and P. They 
are planning to begin their paving project on CR G, CR 29 North, and 29 Road. 
 
Clyde mentioned the initial discussion regarding a roundabout at CR 225 and US 160. 
 
David thanked Sidny for her service. He reported the Town of Bayfield finished their water line 
replacement. They will be hosting July 4 festivities.  
 
Ronnie reported that Archuleta County is working on a number of small road projects.  
 
Andrea congratulated Amber on her new role at CDOT. She reported that the Town of Pagosa 
Springs is preparing for striping. They have an RFQ out for their multimodal plan. CDOT is 
reviewing their parade permit, the parade is planned for July 3. They submitted a Revitalizing 
Main Streets application for Hot Springs Blvd. They have a number of road projects in Town. 
 
Phil reported the City of Cortez is preparing a major intersection rebuild at Montezuma and 
Mildred. They are also preparing for the microgrind project. They will be hosting festivities on 
July 4.  
 
Sarah reported the City of Durango is busy. She will be serving as interim Transportation 
Director for the City. They are awaiting the IGA for SB 267 transit stop improvements. They are 
preparing to issue the RFP for design of Camino crossing. They have contracted design for the 
midtown project. They have awarded for the 32 Street project. They submitted a joint request 
with Archuleta County for two electric buses and electric charging for a fully electric pilot project.  
 
Amber expressed excitement to take on her new role with CDOT. She mentioned this is the first 
time DTR has had a director from a rural area.  
 
There was discussion about meeting in person in August.  
  
The meeting ended at 10:25 a.m. 

 



SWTPR Financials 7/1/2020-6/30/2021   

 
To: SW Colorado Transportation Planning Region 

From: Jessica Laitsch 

Date: 12 August, 2021 
 

Comments: A profit and loss report for the period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 is attached.  
 
The TPR grant runs on a state fiscal year (July 1 to June 30). The attached P&L shows 
the current grant status. Because this is a reimbursement grant, the net income is 
showing in the negative as funds have been spent but not yet reimbursed.  



Southwest Colorado Council of Governments
Profit and Loss

July 2020 - June 2021

Cash Basis  Friday, August 6, 2021 01:57 PM GMT-06:00   1/2

TOTAL

Income

Project Administration

SWTPR 4,918.48

Total Project Administration 4,918.48

SCAN Services

Contract Sharing 2,100.00

Total SCAN Services 2,100.00

Total Income $7,018.48

GROSS PROFIT $7,018.48

Expenses

Administrative Costs

Operating Expenses

Information Technology (IT)

Hardware 263.27

Software 75.60

Total Information Technology (IT) 338.87

Internet Connectivity

Internet Connection (AT&T) 68.74

Total Internet Connectivity 68.74

Office Supplies 21.22

Professional Fees

Audit 393.75

Total Professional Fees 393.75

Rent 1,050.00

Total Operating Expenses 1,872.58

Personnel Expense

Insurance Expense

Health 289.33

Worker's Compensation 23.75

Total Insurance Expense 313.08

Salary and Wages 3,240.71

457 Retirement 72.47

Car Allowance 13.42

Cell Phone Allowance 19.90

Payroll Processing Fee 31.70

Payroll Tax 154.92

Total Salary and Wages 3,533.12

Total Personnel Expense 3,846.20

Total Administrative Costs 5,718.78



Southwest Colorado Council of Governments
Profit and Loss

July 2020 - June 2021

Cash Basis  Friday, August 6, 2021 01:57 PM GMT-06:00   2/2

TOTAL

Project Costs

Shared Services Expenses

Software Maintenance 2,100.00

Total Shared Services Expenses 2,100.00

SWTPR Internet Connection 893.16

SWTPR Travel 563.30

Total Project Costs 3,556.46

Total Expenses $9,275.24

NET OPERATING INCOME $ -2,256.76

NET INCOME $ -2,256.76



STAC Summary – June, July 

 

To: SW Colorado Transportation Planning Region 

From: Jessica Laitsch 

Date: 12 August, 2021 
 

Comments: Below are some highlights from the June and July 2021 Statewide Transportation 
Advisory Committee (STAC) meetings. The draft minutes for the June and July 
meetings are attached.  
 
June: 
CDOT, Transportation Commission, and STAC representative Updates 
Federal and State Legislative Report  

Overview of SB 21-260 
Summary of induced travel demand 
Summary of CDOT Performance Program 
Future meetings will be hybrid, there will be consideration of periodic in-person 
meetings 
 
July: 
CDOT, Transportation Commission, and STAC representative Updates 

Update on cleanup of recent mudslides 
Comments from the Transportation Commissioners in attendance 

Federal Legislation Update 
Review and consensus of project recommendations for the Highway National 
Freight Program  
Review of proposed projects to be funded by SB 267 and SB 260 
There was a follow-up meeting for an update of the Greenhouse Gas Rulemaking 

Recommendation for the TC to postpone the start of the rulemaking process 
The next meeting will be in-person with a Zoom option 

 
 
For more information about STAC, visit:  
https://www.codot.gov/programs/planning/planning-partners/stac.html 





















































Ratify Letters of Support 

 

To: SW Colorado Transportation Planning Region 

From: Jessica Laitsch 

Date: 12 August 2021 
 

Comments: A number of local agencies requested letters of support from the SWTPR for FTA 
Transit grants. Because the grants were due in July, the requests were emailed 
to the SWTPR membership. Since there were no objections, the attached letters 
were sent. 
 
Please see the attached letters along with summaries of each request. 
 
Staff Recommendation: Ratify the letters of support for Dolores County, 
Durango Transit, Southwest Center for Independence and Southwest Colorado 
Council of Governments.  
 
 
 
 
 

  



Southwest Transportation Planning Region – Letter of Support Request 
 
Project Summary:  This program provides demand response transportation for seniors and the general 
public in Dolores County and the surrounding areas.  Dolores County Senior Services also responds to 
persons with disabilities, low income, and other transit dependent persons in the community.   
 
Approximate amount to be requested:  $54,000.00 
 
Does the proposal have a regional impact?  Yes 
 
Has the proponent consulted with agencies that might have jurisdiction over decisions that could 
impact the implementation of the proposal?  Not applicable 
 
What is the impact on the region if the proposal succeeds?   If we succeed, we will continue to provide 
quality service to our population. Should we fail, we will be unable to provide service to Dolores County 
and the surrounding area.  This has the potential to affect many people’s quality of life because without 
our service our residents would be unable to get to medical appointment, and to meet their other basic 
needs.  
 
In what areas of the region, if any, will the proposed activity take place?  Service area includes Dove 
Creek, Cahone, and Rico in Dolores County and the neighboring communities of Pleasant View, in 
Montezuma County and Egnar in San Miguel County. 
 
Is one or more SWTPR member working on a similar activity or goal?  Not to my knowledge. 
 
If so, does this letter of support potentially support or undermine the Member activity/goal? 
 
What other agencies are you requesting a letter of support from?  Dolores County Board of County 
Commissioners. 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



16 July, 2021 

Kim Phi, Programming Specialist 
Division of Transit and Rail 
Colorado Department of Transportation 
2829 W. Howard Pl. 
Denver, CO 80204 

RE: Support for Dolores County’s application for FTA 5311 Rural Public Transit 

Dear Mr. Phi: 

The Southwest Transportation Planning Region (SWTPR) represents Archuleta, Dolores, La Plata, 
Montezuma, and San Juan counties to work on transportation planning and coordination, project, and 
funding issues throughout the region. Considering the valuable transportation services they provide, we 
would like to express support for Dolores County’s application for FTA 5311 funds. 

Dolores County provides essential public transportation service in our region, providing demand response 
transportation for seniors and the general public in Dolores County and the surrounding areas.  Dolores 
County Senior Services also responds to persons with disabilities, low income, and other transit dependent 
persons in the community. In addition to providing essential public transportation services, the Dolores 
County is a key player in our region’s transportation coordination efforts and partnerships including the 
SWTPR and the Regional Transit Coordinating Council. 

We fully support Dolores County’s application for FTA 5311 funds. We thank you for your support of public 
transportation in southwest Colorado. 

Sincerely, 

Sarah Hill 
Southwest Transportation Planning Region Chair 



Southwest Transportation Planning Region – Letter of Support Request 
 
Project Summary: 
Durango Transit utilizes FTA Section 5310 Mobility Management funds to sustain operating expenses for 
the complementary paratransit service, the Opportunity Bus. Durango Transit uses the funding to 
improve mobility options primarily for people with disabilities, seniors and low-income earners, and to 
improve service efficiencies and reduce transportation costs in the Southwest Transportation Planning 
Region. 
 
Approximate amount to be requested: 
Total project: $88,502 
Federal amount: $70,801.60 
Local: $17,700.40 
 
Does the proposal have a regional impact? 
Yes. The Opportunity Bus serves seniors within ¾ of a mile of Durango city limits, and coordinates with 
regional service providers.  
 
Has the proponent consulted with agencies that might have jurisdiction over decisions that could 
impact the implementation of the proposal? 
Yes  
 
What is the impact on the region if the proposal succeeds? Fails? 
The Opportunity Bus is the largest public transit service provider for people with seniors and disabilities 
in the region, providing over 5500 rides per year. Those riders would not be able to be accommodated at 
the same level if this project is not funded.  
 
In what areas of the region, if any, will the proposed activity take place? 
Durango, and ¾ of a mile outside of City limits 
 
Is one or more SWTPR member working on a similar activity or goal? 
This public transit service does not overlap other transit service providers due to the nature of public 
availability and capacity.  
 
If so, does this letter of support potentially support or undermine the Member activity/goal? 
N/A 
 
What other agencies are you requesting a letter of support from? 
City of Durango, San Juan Basin Public Health, La Plata County, FLC, School District 9-R 
 
 
 
 





Southwest Transportation Planning Region – Letter of Support Request 
 
Project Summary: 
Expanding accessible transportation across La Plata County  
 
Approximate amount to be requested: 
$100,000 
 
Does the proposal have a regional impact? 
Yes- the proposal will increase access to transportation for older adults and people with disabilities 
across La Plata County.  
 
Has the proponent consulted with agencies that might have jurisdiction over decisions that could 
impact the implementation of the proposal? 
Yes 
 
What is the impact on the region if the proposal succeeds? Fails? 
The proposed project will expand accessible transportation options for older adults (60+) and people 
with disabilities to access essential resources.  
 
In what areas of the region, if any, will the proposed activity take place? 
 
Is one or more SWTPR member working on a similar activity or goal? 
Yes, various members of the SWTPR are applying for 5310 and 5311 funding through CODOT.  
 
If so, does this letter of support potentially support or undermine the Member activity/goal? 
No- we are working in coordination with transit providers that are part of the SWTPR to maximize 
resources across agencies, in efforts to address the communities growing transit needs.   
 
What other agencies are you requesting a letter of support from? 
Pine River Shares  
City of Durango  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



16 July, 2021 

Kim Phi, Programming Specialist 
Division of Transit and Rail 
Colorado Department of Transportation 
2829 W. Howard Pl. 
Denver, CO 80204 

RE: Support for Southwest Center for Independence’s request for Rural Operating funds. 

Dear Mr. Phi: 

The Southwest Transportation Planning Region (SWTPR) represents Archuleta, Dolores, La Plata, 
Montezuma, and San Juan counties to work on transportation planning and coordination, project, and 
funding issues throughout the region. Considering the valuable transportation services they provide, we 
would like to express support for Southwest Center for Independence’s (SWCI) application for FTA Rural 
Operating funds. 

SWCI’s transit program, Southwest Rides (SWRides), provides accessible, door-to-door transportation for 
people with disabilities, older adults, veterans across La Plata County at no cost to the rider. Through the 
proposed project, SWRides aims to expand its capacity to address the unmet transportation needs of 
marginalized populations across La Plata County, especially people that reside in geographically isolated 
communities and older adults, who have no other way to access essential community resources. The 
SWRides team has also been a valuable collaborator with the Regional Transit Coordinating Council. 

We fully support SWCI’s application for FTA Rural Operating funding. We thank you for your support of 
public transportation in southwest Colorado. 

Sincerely, 

Sarah Hill 
Southwest Transportation Planning Region Chair 



Southwest Transportation Planning Region – Letter of Support Request 
 
Project Summary: 
The phased development by the Southwest Colorado Council of Governments of a regional one-call/one-
click public transportation information system for the 5-county region.  
 
Approximate amount to be requested: 
$30,000 
 
Does the proposal have a regional impact? 
This project will improve coordination, information sharing, and access to information for transportation 
providers and their clients throughout the southwest Colorado region. 
 
Has the proponent consulted with agencies that might have jurisdiction over decisions that could 
impact the implementation of the proposal? 
Yes 
 
What is the impact on the region if the proposal succeeds? Fails? 
If the proposal succeeds, the region will have an increased ability to coordinate existing services. 
Additionally, this will simplify access to information for residents and visitors. If the proposal fails, the 
current operations remain unchanged. 
 
In what areas of the region, if any, will the proposed activity take place? 
Throughout the 5-county region. 
 
Is one or more SWTPR member working on a similar activity or goal? 
This project is intended to facilitate coordination of existing transit services. 
 
If so, does this letter of support potentially support or undermine the Member activity/goal? 
This would support each of the existing services and supports the overarching goal to enhance 
coordination. 
 
What other agencies are you requesting a letter of support from? 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



16 July, 2021 

Kim Phi, Programming Specialist 
Division of Transit and Rail 
Colorado Department of Transportation 
2829 W. Howard Pl. 
Denver, CO 80204 

RE: Support for SWCCOG’s application for FTA 5310 Mobility Management funds 

Dear Mr. Phi: 

The Southwest Transportation Planning Region (SWTPR) represents Archuleta, Dolores, La Plata, 
Montezuma, and San Juan counties to work on transportation planning and coordination, project, and 
funding issues throughout the region. Considering the planned improvements to transportation services, 
we would like to express support for the Southwest Colorado Council of Government’s (SWCCOG) 
application for FTA 5310 Mobility Management funds. 

The SWCCOG works to maximize the services available through their coordination efforts managing the 
Regional Transit Coordinating Council and encouraging collaboration among the various partners and 
other stakeholders throughout the region. The one-call/one-click system will enhance collaboration 
efforts and help the region address its well documented needs.  

We fully support SWCCOG’s application for FTA 5310 funds. We thank you for your support of public 
transportation in southwest Colorado. 

Sincerely, 

Sarah Hill 
Southwest Transportation Planning Region Chair 




